City of Greenfield Plan Commission
Regular Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, October 14, 2025 7:00 p.m.
Richard J. Pasco Council Chambers, City Hall
10 S. State St, Greenfield, IN 46140

Plan Commission President, Becky Riley, called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Commission Secretary, Monica Evans, took Roll Call with the following members present:

Becky Riley, President
Chris Cooper	
Mike Terry
Paulette Richardson
Thomas Moore
Dave Spencer
Glen Morrow
Rick Roberts
Laurene Lonnemann


Non-member staff present:

Monica Evans, Secretary
Gregg Morelock, Attorney
Evan Beaty, Planner


At this time, a motion was made to approve the minutes for the August 2025 meeting.  The motion was made by P. Richardson and seconded by M. Terry.  T. Moore abstained from voting.  Motion carried.

E. Beaty gave the administrator’s report.  He stated the summary had been provided to members and there were no questions.


REZ25-04:  861 N. Swope St.  The Nook Land Company, HD Mize Recommendation

E. Beaty gave the staff report.  The 2 parcels are currently zoned as CN-Commercial North and the Petitioner would like to rezone to RU-Residential Urban.  This is in line with the comprehensive plan as a mixed-use property.  The property was originally zoned as RU and was rezoned in 2022 to CN.  Permitted uses are desirable and compatible within the area. The rezone will not have a negative impact on any surrounding properties.  All utilities are available to the property. Staff is recommending a favorable recommendation to Council.  

T. Moore asked what made this property desirable before when it was rezoned in 2022.  E. Beaty stated that he doesn’t believe there have been any requests for residential developments.  E. Beaty stated that he feels that the difficulty of the site is one of the main reasons the previous petition fell through.    

L. Lonneman asked if the property is rezoned, would the petition come back to plan commission or BZA.  E. Beaty stated that it depends on the proposal.  Different types of development require different board approvals.  

R. Roberts sked why other zoning types have not been proposed since these are larger lot sizes.  E. Beaty stated that the RU zoning is compatible with the area as there is a residential neighborhood to the east of this property.  

L. Lonneman asked if there was any other Commercial interest in this property.  E. Beaty stated he has not heard of anything else.  

Bill Evans came forward and was sworn in.  He stated he is the consultant for this project and he feels this is a pretty simple rezone as it meets all the ordinances.  He stated costs and challenges didn’t allow for previous projects on this property to proceed.  He stated the property is dense woods and there aren’t many good trees on the site.  There have also been homeless people living in the wooded area.  

Mr. Evans stated there will be 2 buildings with 54 units in total.  They will file plans tonight if the zoning is approved.  The landscaping plans will be provided with the plans as well.  There will be 84 parking stalls, and underground detention.  They also have a drainage study.  The Petitioner met with neighbors and have made some suggestions they are going to incorporate into the plans.    

He believes having more people closer to downtown will improve downtown business.  He stated the landscaping plans are similar to the Hospitals landscaping across the street.  He stated the project will be about $8 million dollars.  He said the area will not be diminished and the property will be in much better condition than it is currently.  

L. Lonneman asked if both parcels will be rezoned or just one.  Mr. Evans stated that the property will be replatted into 1 lot under the RU zoning.  

T. Moore asked if the apartments will be market rate.  Mr. Evans stated they will be approximately $1450 per month.  

P. Richardson asked if the apartments will be tax-based apartments.  Also, why are they not senior apartments as the area has a nursing home and assisted living and other healthcare facilities. 

P. Richardson asked what the square footage for the 2-bedroom apartments is. Mr. Evans stated that the 2-bedroom apartments are 890 square feet. P. Richardson also asked if there is any green space for children.  Mr. Evans stated that with all the apartments the petitioners own, there are only 10 kids within all the apartments.  

R. Roberts asked what the biggest takeaway with the neighbors’ meeting.  He said Pets are a concern and they are looking at putting in something for the animals.  The neighbors are also concerned about trash and trespassing.  Mr., Evans advised that they also told the neighbors that Mr. Mize is local and is available anytime if there are issues. 

P. Richardson also asked about lights from cars going in and out of the apartments.  Mr. Evans stated there will be a retaining wall and landscaping on the north side so that should help shield the lights.   

P. Richardson asked if there will be handicapped accessible apartments and if they will be section 8 housing.  Mr. Evans stated that there will be some handicapped apartments.  

There are several residents in the area that would like to speak.  Below are the names and comments. All were sworn in.

Walter Buchanan-He lives in Autumn Place.  He said parking is going to be tight.  Greenfield Knoll is currently renting apartments and they can’t fill them.  He said building the 2 buildings doesn’t seem reasonable to him.  He said right now there won’t be any HUD rentals but when times get tough it will change.  He said he doesn’t think the buildings will fit in with the neighborhood. 

Larry McGuire-Resident of Autumn Trace handed out copy of his remonstrance information, then was sworn in. He feels the project does not fit the area.  He said the wooded area is a sanctuary for animals and an aesthetic setting for the area.  He said they favor projects that align with the city’s master plan and that is aging in place. The sizes of the structures, noise, traffic, parking and no green space for kids are also issues to him.  There are 8 bodies of water behind the property that concern him.  He feels there is sufficient housing in Greenfield and do not need the apartments.  

Jarrod White came forward and was sworn in.  He is the son of the owners of the trailer park.  He says he constantly runs people off his property that come to the lake. He said he has also had someone shoot at him on his own property.  He does not want the woods to be torn out.  

Richard Cota came forward and was sworn in.  He had 2 comments.  He stated there needs to be a recreation area for the apartments.  He also stated the apartments do not have elevators and will not be handicapped accessible.  

Sandy Kinnamon came forward and was sworn in.  She said there is lots of wildlife in the area and does not want to see them gone. There is also no area for kids to play or for pets.  She is afraid the open stairwells will invite the homeless population to stay there.  She doesn’t think there is enough parking.  She said the residents at Crown Point walk with walkers and come to Autumn place for their park area.  She thinks more traffic will be a burden.

Beverly Parsons came forward and was sworn in.  She stated she lives in the Fleming addition and it takes a lot of time to get on McKenzie from her neighborhood.  She stated there is too much traffic now and it will increase once the apartments are built.  She said it does flood in the area.  She also is afraid it will run the animals out of the area. 

Todd Larson came forward and was sworn in.  He said his mother lives in Autumn Place and he does not like the aesthetics of the buildings.  He also does not like the density of the apartments.  He would like to see a bigger landscape buffer as the proposed buffer is very narrow.  He is also concerned that the lake is a dangerous place.  

Charlotte Steiner came forward and was sworn in.  She lives in Autumn Place and moved in 10 years ago.  She said it is a wonderful place and is afraid that property values will go down.  She is also concerned about increased traffic.  She said there will be all kinds of people in and out of the apartments since they don’t have any investment in the property.  She also does not like seeing kids playing in the hospital’s parking lot.  She feels the building will be an eyesore in the neighborhood. 

Priscilla McGuire came forward and was sworn in.  She lives in Autumn Place and loves living there.  She said this is the only location in Greenfield where there is a 3-legged deer.  She is very concerned with increased traffic and the children’s safety.  She believes this is not a location for children as they will play in the hospital parking lots.  She is in favor of the development, just not where it is being proposed to be built. 

Patricia Mullry-Shaffer came forward and was sworn in.  She does not think  3 story buildings should go in the neighborhood and does not like that the trees will be cut down.  She thinks children will find their way to the lake; traffic will increase along with the density.  She stated it is not conducive to the neighborhood.

Kevin Flint came forward and was sworn in.  He is not a resident but has family in Autumn Place.  He stated they should consider there are 54 units of young professionals and will anticipate 108 cars.  With a mass casualty event, the volume of traffic would be horrible.  He thinks there will be a lot higher volume of traffic everyday also.

Mike Flint came forward and was sworn in.  He stated he moved from Northwestern Indiana where it was very condensed.  He thinks anything and everything could happen.  And the value of the properties cannot exceed the number of people.  He said the builder doesn’t live in the neighborhood.  He feels people don’t leave, they abandon their properties and the apartments will be left empty.  

D. Spencer thanked the audience for being so considerate with the time constraints.  T. Moore asked if a traffic study would need to be completed.  J. Wertman said one would more than likely be needed for BZA and they can make it a condition of approval if they would like.  

Bill Evans came forward to address the comments made.  He stated that they hope to have long term residents.  There will be security camera on the property.  More than 20 trees will be planted for landscaping and 5 times that number of shrubs and bushes.  He stated that the parking meets the UDO requirements.  He also stated that the plan does not encroach on the set back that was previously approved and staff recommends approval.  

R. Roberts asked if the RU area will allow a 3-story building and the materials being used.  The max building height in this zone can be 45 feet.  

B. Roberts asked for a recommendation.  T. Moore made a motion for no recommendation.  P. Richardson seconded the motion.  Motion carried 8-1. 










REZ25-03: Cooks Corner PUD Zoning Recommendation  

The property is located at the SW corner of McKenzie and Windswept Road.  It was previously annexed and zoned in 2022.  The property was sold and a new developer took over.  This petition is for section 1B.  It was originally to be paired villas and not the Petitioner is requesting a PUD for the single-family homes on smaller lots.  Staff is not recommending approval for this petition.  

Joe Calderon, Attorney for Petitioner with Barnes and Thornburg came forward and was sworn in.  He stated they are proposing obtainable housing at a price point that would be the same as the rent for the apartments in the previous petition. There will be 72 single family lots that are 46 feet wide.  Mr. Calderon also showed a presentation of what is being proposed.  They no longer want to build duplexes as they are not selling currently.  

He stated the previous director had different thoughts on the property versus the new Planning Director.  He stated the price point for the homes in the PUD section will be low to mid $200s.  In the RM zone, it will be mid to upper $300s.  

G. Morrow asked about the sewer laterals and if there would be room.  Richard Henderson came forward and was sworn in and he stated that he is not concerned about the sewers as it is the same amount as the previous approval.  G. Morrow also asked if the homes would be vinyl.  They stated they will continue to look at options.

P. Richardson asked about the square footage of the homes and the price points.  R. Henderson stated that the prices will start in the low 200s and go up from there.  Square footage is 1100 sq ft to 2000 sq ft.  

D. Spencer stated he is a fan of street names.  R. Henderson stated the street names were set previously and they liked them so they kept them.  

T. Moore asked J. Wertman if the lower price point is meeting the need of housing in the City.  She stated that there are a lot of different mixes of homes.  She stated that building permits are strong.  She said the price is a little subjective.  

Aaron Fralich came forward and was sworn in.  He stated that we need affordable housing as 22- and 23-year-olds cannot afford housing.  Kids are better educated these days and they still can’t afford a home.  He said there’s the same number of units and could build the doubles that were approved before.  

Kathleen Lawrence came forward and was sworn in.  She asked if rezoning would affect property values for existing homes on Windswept Road.   Mr. Calderon stated there will still be many homes in the $300 range and does not think there will be any devaluation of homes.  

J. Wertman stated that what was previously approved and what is being asked to be approved now are very different requests and that is why they are being handled differently.  E. Beaty showed a rendering of the 3-story home the Petitioner submitted.  G. Morrow asked about the landscaping plan that was submitted.  E. Beaty said the trees are shown being placed in the easements and that it is an issue.  

J. Wertman stated that if there is a project approved and can be met under another district it can be moved to that and not to a PUD.  

A motion was made for an unfavorable recommendation by R. Roberts and seconded by L. Lonneman.  Motion carried 9-0 for unfavorable recommendation.  


A motion to adjourn was made by T. Moore and seconded by P. Richardson.  Motion carried.

      
 

